East Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee
agenda
Date:

Tuesday 6 April 2021

Time:

6.30 pm

Venue:

Via Video Conference

Membership:
C Jones (Chairman), N Rose (Vice-Chairman), D Bray, J Burton, J Gladwin, P Jones,
J MacBean, J Rush, N Southworth, M Titterington, J Waters and J Wertheim

Webcasting notice
Please note: this meeting may be filmed for live or subsequent broadcast via the council's
website. At the start of the meeting the chairman will confirm if all or part of the meeting is
being filmed.
You should be aware that the council is a data controller under the Data Protection Act.
Data collected during this webcast will be retained in accordance with the council’s
published policy.
Therefore by entering the meeting room, you are consenting to being filmed and to the
possible use of those images and sound recordings for webcasting and/or training purposes.
If members of the public do not wish to have their image captured they should ask the
committee clerk, who will advise where to sit.
If you have any queries regarding this, please contact the Legal & Democratic Service
Director at monitoringofficer@buckinghamshire.gov.uk.

Public Speaking
If you have any queries concerning public speaking at Planning Committee meetings,
including registering your intention to speak, please speak to a member of the Planning
team – planning.csb@buckinghamshire.gov.uk 01494 732950. Please refer to the Guide to
Public Speaking at Planning Committee here.

Agenda Item
1

Apologies for Absence

2

Declarations of Interest

3

Minutes of the Previous Meeting
To agree the minutes of the meeting held on 9 March 2021 as an
accurate record.

Page No

3-6

Applications to be determined
4

PL/20/4358/FA - 41 Watchet Lane, Holmer Green, Buckinghamshire,
HP15 6UF

7 - 14

5

PL/20/3208/FA - Gable Cottage, Elm Road, Penn, High Wycombe,
Buckinghamshire, HP10 8LB

15 - 26

6

PL/20/3209/FA - Gable Cottage, Elm Road, Penn, High Wycombe,
Buckinghamshire, HP10 8LB

27 - 34

7

PL/21/0770/FA - Buryfield Car Park, Link Road, Great Missenden,
Buckinghamshire

35 - 44

8

Date and Time of the Next Meeting
Tuesday 15 June 2021 at 6.30pm – To Be Confirmed

If you would like to attend a meeting, but need extra help to do so, for example because of
a disability, please contact us as early as possible, so that we can try to put the right support
in place.
For further information please contact: Liz Hornby on 01494 421261, email
democracy@buckinghamshire.gov.uk.

Agenda Item 3

East Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee minutes
Minutes of the meeting of the East Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee held on
Tuesday 9 March 2021 in Via Video Conference, commencing at 6.30 pm and concluding at
9.05 pm.

Members present
C Jones, N Rose, D Bray, J Burton, J Gladwin, P Jones, J MacBean, J Rush, N Southworth,
M Titterington, J Waters and J Wertheim

Officers in attendance
E Cook, A Dell, L Hornby, M Shires and M Smith

Agenda Item
1

Apologies for Absence
There were no apologies.

2

Declarations of Interest
There were none.

3

Minutes of the Previous Meeting
The minutes of the East Buckinghamshire Area Planning Committee meeting held on
9 February 2021 were agreed as a correct record.

4

PL/20/3086/FA - The Swan Public House, Blackwell Hall Lane, Ley Hill,
Buckinghamshire, HP5 1UT
Change of Use to a single dwelling (C3) to include provision of on-site parking.
The Planning Officer advised Members that paragragh 2.1 of the report was
incorrect in that the application site was within the Green Belt Settlement area. One
further objection had been received which referred to objections that were already
referred to in the report and also commented on the agent’s recent viability
comments.
Members voted unanimously in favour of the motion to refuse the application in
accordance with officer recommendation.
Speaking as a Member: Councillor G Williams
Speaking as Ward Members: Councillor E Culverhouse and Councillor A Garth
Speaking as Chairman of the Latimer and Ley Hill Parish Council: Councillor A Birkett
Page 3

Speaking in objection: Ms S Peterson
Speaking in support: Mr D Clark
It was proposed by Councillor N Rose and seconded by Councillor J MacBean.
Resolved: that the application be refused.
5

PL/20/4132/FA - Slievmore, 84 Denham Lane, Chalfont St Peter, Buckinghamshire,
SL9 0ES
Demolition of existing dwelling and detached garage and erection of new dwelling.
Members voted in favour of the motion to grant the application in accordance with
officer recommendation.
The Planning Officer recommended that an additional Informative be added to any
grant of planning permission regarding not obstructing the school crossing; that
Condition 7 be amended to include reference to a timetable and that there be a new
Condition regarding the use of the garage and an amendment to Condition 10 to
refer to approval “in writing”.
Speaking in objection: The Committee Services Officer read out a written submission
by Mr D Cunningham.
Speaking as the Agent on behalf of the Applicant: Mr B Smith
It was proposed by Councillor D Bray and seconded by Councillor J MacBean.
Resolved: that the application be approved.

6

PL/20/4358/FA - 41 Watchet Lane, Holmer Green, Buckinghamshire, HP15 6UF
Erection of two detached dwellings, one with integral garage and creation of new
vehicular access.
Following a lengthy debate, Members first voted in favour of the motion to approve
the application, that motion was defeated and therefore fell away.
The first motion was proposed by Councillor P Jones and seconded by Councillor J
Burton.
Members then voted in favour of the motion to defer the application for the
following reasons:
1. To gain more detail in respect of planting
2. That the Highways Authority be asked to re-evaluate their decision in respect
of the access / visibility and to ensure that it complied with relevant
standards.
3. That the turning circle for emergency vehicles be looked at as concern was
raised that there was inadequate space.
4. Parking layout be re-evaluated.
5. The bin storage area be reassessed, to see if it is large enough.

Page 4

6. To obtain more detail on the boundary treatments.
The Planning Officer advised Members that no comments had been received from
the Parish Council and that the Applicant had agreed the recommended precommencement conditions and that condition 6 be amended to refer to approval
“in writing”
Speaking in objection: Mr M Phimister
Speaking as the Agent on behalf of the Applicant: Mr M Longworth
The second motion was proposed by Councillor J Waters and seconded by
Councillor J MacBean.
Resolved: that the application be deferred for the reasons laid out above.
7

Date and Time of the Next Meeting
Tuesday 6 April 2021 at 6.30pm.

Page 5

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 4

Buckinghamshire Council
www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk

Report to East Area Planning Committee - Deferred Application
Application Number:

PL/20/4358/FA

Proposal:

Erection of two detached dwellings, one with integral
garage and creation of new vehicular access

Site Location:

41 Watchet Lane, Holmer Green, Buckinghamshire, HP15
6UF

Applicant:

Mr Trevor Snoxell and Mr Mark Snoxell

Case Officer:

Emma Showan

Ward(s) affected:

Penn Wood & Old Amersham

Parish-Town Council:

Little Missenden Parish Council

Date valid application received:

21 December 2020

Statutory determination date:

8 April 2021

Recommendation

Conditional permission

1.0

Matters for consideration
1.1 Members will recall that this application was heard by Planning Committee at the
meeting held on the 9 March 2020. It was resolved to defer the application to allow
for further negotiations with the Agent. Specifically concerns were raised with regards
to:
-

The planting and landscaping on site
Whether the access was sufficient to accommodate a fire fighting appliance
Requirement for a larger bin/waste storage area
An inadequate turning circle on site
Concerns regarding visibility splays
Further information regarding boundary treatments between properties and
along the access

1.2

Amended plans and additional information has been submitted (dated 20 th March
2021) and has been considered by Planning Officers, and are considered to overcome
the concerns raised.

1.3

A summary of the proposed additional information/amended plans is provided below:
-

A highways report providing tracking diagrams showing a fire fighting appliance
turning on site; a delivery vehicle turning on site; cars from Plot 1 turning whilst
the second place is occupied; and cars from Plot 2 parking in the turning head
whilst allowing the second car parked closest to the house to turn and exit the
site in a forward gear.

Page 7

-

-

2.0

It is confirmed that the access road is only 3.7 metres across a small area, part is
4.1 metres which allows two cars to pass, and the turning head and entrance to
the site is 4.8 metres wide, in accordance with the recommendations of Manual
for Streets. These dimensions are shown on the site plans.
It is shown that Plot 1 has parking for three vehicles in addition to a garage
parking space, so there is over provision in terms of the Council’s parking
standards.
Lighting bollards have been provided along the access boundary with No. 39A.
Infill planting to hedges to be a mix of holly, hawthorn and blackthorn.
Close board fence to rear of Plot 1/boundary with No. 39A is omitted and existing
chain link fence to be retained.
Further details of tree planting have been provided.
Infill planting along boundary with No. 43.
Waste and recycling store to be provided at site entrance.
Visibility splays of 2.4 x 43 metres to be provided (to standard)

Evaluation
Principle of development
2.1

The site is located within the built up area of Holmer Green where, in accordance with
Policy H3, proposals for new dwellings are acceptable in principle subject to there
being no conflict with any other Local Plan policy. Proposals should be compatible with
the character of those areas by respecting the general density, scale, siting, height and
character of buildings in the locality of the application site, and the presence of trees,
shrubs, lawns and verges.

2.2

A number of applications have been submitted for the re-development of this site,
proposing the retention of the existing dwelling fronting Watchet Lane and the
subdivision of the remainder of the site to erect two new detached dwellings in the
rear garden area. The current application has been submitted in response to three
similar applications which were all refused planning permission. The previous
application was taken to appeal where it was dismissed for a single reason for refusal;
it was considered that the dwelling on Plot Two would be harmful to the amenities of
the existing neighbouring property at No. 39 Watchet Lane. The principle of
development however was established and remains acceptable under this current
application.

2.3

Members should be aware that as the Appeal Inspector only raised one issue, namely
the impact on the amenity of a neighbouring property, that is the single issue to
overcome with this application. Matters relating to the principle of development,
access, refuse storage, parking and amenity of other neighbours were all in effect
determined at the previous appeal, where the Inspector raised no objections. To raise
wholly new concerns now would be regarded as unreasonable in the event of another
appeal.

Raising the quality of place making and design
2.4

As part of the previous appeal decision, the Inspector stated that the design of the
proposal would generally conform with the style and arrangement of local
development. The proposed height and mass would complement the scale and general
height of existing neighbouring dwellings and the layout would provide rear gardens
and parking areas that would be in character with local plot sizes. The Inspector also

Page 8

stated that the proposed dwellings would not over dominate the frontage bungalow
or be overt in views of the site from the surrounding street scene. He raised no
objection to the erection of two, two-storey dwellings in this location.
2.5

This current scheme proposes the erection of a two storey detached dwelling and a
bungalow. The arrangement of dwellings is as was considered acceptable by the
previous Planning Inspector, whilst the erection of a bungalow would not be visible
from the public highway and its siting to the rear is such that it would not be prominent
in local views. The reduced scale of the proposal would mean that the development
has a reduced impact on the character of the area, whilst, the mix of property types
and appearances in the locality means that the proposed dwellings would not be out
of character with the locality.

2.6

To conclude, based on the similarities between this application and the previous
scheme and the comments of the Appeal Inspector, it is considered that the proposal
would be of an acceptable appearance and siting, and would not be harmful to the
character of the area.

Amenity of existing and future residents
2.7

The Appeal Inspector considered that the erection of a dwelling on Plot 1 would not
be harmful to the amenities of No. 39a. The current application proposes that the
Dwelling on Plot 1 would be comparable to the dwelling assessed by the Appeal
Inspector. It would be the same proportions, same siting, and would have the same
relationship with the amenity area of No. 39a. As the Appeal Inspector considered that
this relationship would be acceptable, no new objections can be raised now.

2.8

Meanwhile, concerns had been raised by the Planning Inspector with respect to the
impact of the Dwelling on Plot Two on the amenities of No. 43. It was considered that
the proposed two storey dwelling, due to its proximity and dominance, would be an
invasive and prominent addition to the outlook from No. 43. In order to overcome this
reason for refusal, the proposed dwelling has been reduced in scale so that it would
now be a single storey bungalow with no first floor living accommodation. This would
reduce the scale and prominence of the proposed dwelling and mean that it no longer
appears dominant, overbearing or intrusive to the amenities of No. 43.

2.9

In order to ensure that the LPA can control the impact of future development on site
and its impact on neighbouring amenities, conditions recommending the removal of
Permitted Development rights relating to the insertion of new first floor windows,
dormers and erection of loft and roof extensions is considered necessary. Members
raised concern about this condition at the last meeting, but it complies with all the
tests for conditions and Government guidance is very clear that a development must
not be refused if a condition can overcome any harm.

2.10 Due to the proximity of the proposed dwellings to existing residential development,
further details have been provided of the boundary treatments to ensure that an
appropriate means of boundary screening is provided. An amended site plan shows
additional infill planting to the existing hedges, which will be a mix of holly, hawthorn
and blackthorn. Following concerns of Members in regards to the erection of a close
boarded fence to the rear of Plot One/boundary with 39A, this has been omitted and
the existing chain link fence will be retained. The additional planting to improve
boundary screening can be subject to a condition requiring that it is provided. The
hedge is a mix of native planting, but with thorny plants to aid security.

Page 9

2.11 An enlarged bin store has been shown to be provided on the amended site plan,
alongside the entrance to the site. This is considered to be acceptable to meet the
needs of future occupiers of the development.
Transport matters and parking
2.12 The Planning Committee raised concerns at the last meeting with respect of the access
arrangements. The Applicant has since provided a Highways report with tracking
diagrams which show a firefighting appliance turning on site; a delivery vehicle turning
on site; cars from Plot 1 turning whilst the second place is occupied; cars from Plot 2
parking in the turning head whilst allowing the second car parked closest to the house
to turn and exit the site in a forward gear. Measurements for the vehicular access have
also been provided, which show that the majority of the road is 4.8 metres wide (in
accordance with the guidance of Manual for Streets), with only a small pinch point of
3.7 metres. It is noted that 3.7 metres is a common traffic calming feature whilst the
width of the access as a whole is sufficient to allow two cars to pass. This additional
information is considered sufficient to overcome the concerns raised, and ensure that
adequate access and turning on site is provided for both future occupiers, delivery
vehicles and firefighting appliances.
2.13 At the previous meeting, Members stated that a fire fighting appliance was 3.7 metres
wide and queried how the access was suitable. This is not the case. A fire-fighting
appliance is 2.3 metres wide and the Manual for Streets contains information from the
Association of Chief Fire Officers (AoCFO). The AoCFO confirms that an access width of
2.75 metres is perfectly accessible for a fire-fighting appliance. The access in this case
exceeds that notably for its entire length.
2.14 The proposed development provides parking for future occupiers of the development
in accordance with the requirements of Local Plan Policy TR16. Four spaces are
provided for Dwelling One – which exceeds the Council’s standards, and it has been
shown from the tracking diagrams that vehicles can also park in the turning head and
there would still be adequate space on site for vehicles to turn and leave the site in a
forward gear.
2.15 The amended site plan shows that visibility splays of 2.4 x 43 metres can be provided
at the vehicular entrance with Watchet Lane. This is to standard and is considered to
be acceptable.
Landscaping
2.16 The Applicant has submitted an amended site plan which shows additional infill
planting to hedges (to comprise a mix of holly, hawthorn and blackthorn), in addition
to new tree planting on the boundaries with No. 39a and No. 43. The species of the
trees have been shown. It is considered that the tree planting is sufficient and will
provide an additional level of screening between the proposed dwellings and the
existing neighbouring properties. A condition requiring that the development is
erected in accordance with the details shown on this plan is recommended.
2.17 At the previous Committee meeting, Councillors also stated that trees in the garden
such as the oak on the boundary with No. 43 should be topped and crown reduced.
This can be secured by condition, requesting that the Applicant submits a plan for
approval showing all existing trees on the land, with details of those to be retained,
those to be topped or reduced and those to be felled clearly being specified.

Page 10

Conclusion
2.18 Following the discussion and concerns raised at the last Planning Committee meeting,
the Applicant has submitted additional information in relation to highways and
vehicular tracking movements on site, as well as amended plans showing the proposed
landscaping, tree/hedge planting and bin and waste/recycling storage to serve the
future occupiers. Even though none of these issues were identified by the previous
Appeal Inspector as problematic, and technically no new concerns in these regards can
now be reasonably introduced, the Applicant has worked with Officers to promptly
provide a raft of new information to help Members. It is considered that the concerns
raised have been sufficiently overcome and that the development can be approved,
subject to conditions, ensuring that it has an acceptable impact on the character of the
area, neighbouring amenities, and highway/parking implications. The Applicant has
agreed to the pre-commencement conditions. Given the above, the proposed
development is recommended for conditional permission.
3.0

Recommendation: Conditional Permission
Subject to the following conditions:-

1.

The development to which this permission relates must be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To prevent the accumulation of unimplemented planning permissions, to enable the
Local Planning Authority to review the suitability of the development in the light of altered
circumstances and to comply with the provisions of Section 91 (1) of the Town & Country
Planning Act 1990, as amended.

2.

Before any construction work above slab level commences, full details of the materials to be
used for the external construction of the development hereby permitted, including the
facing materials, roofing materials and surface materials for the road and parking areas, shall
be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development
shall only be carried out in the approved materials.
Reason: To ensure that the external appearance of the development is not detrimental to
the character of the locality, in accordance with policies GC1 and H3 of the Chiltern District
Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001)
consolidated September 2007 and November 2011, and policy CS20 of the Core Strategy for
Chiltern District (Adopted November 2011).

3.

Prior to the commencement of any works on site, detailed plans, including cross sections as
appropriate, showing the existing ground levels and the proposed slab and finished floor
levels of the dwellings hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by
the Local Planning Authority. Such levels shall be shown in relation to a fixed datum point
normally located outside the application site. Thereafter the development shall not be
constructed other than as approved in relation to the fixed datum point.
Reason: To protect, as far as is possible, the character of the locality and the residential
amenities of neighbouring properties, in accordance with policies GC1, GC3 and H3 of the
Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May
2001) consolidated September 2007 and November 2011, and policy CS20 of the Core
Strategy for Chiltern District (Adopted November 2011).

4.

No other part of the development shall begin until the modified access onto Watchet Lane
has been laid out in accordance with the approved plans and visibility splays have been
provided on both sides of the access between a point 2.4 metres along the centre line of the

Page 11

access measured from the edge of the carriageway and a point 43 metres along the edge of
the carriageway measured from the intersection of the centre line of the access. The area
contained within the splays shall be kept free of any obstruction exceeding 0.6 metres in
height above the nearside channel level of the carriageway.
Reason: in order to minimise danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the highway
and of the development, and to provide adequate intervisibility between the access and the
existing public highway for the safety and convenience of users of the highway and of the
access, in accordance with policies TR2 and TR3 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1
September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007
and November 2011, and policies CS25 and CS26 of the Core Strategy for Chiltern District
(Adopted November 2011).
5.

The scheme for parking, garaging and manoeuvring indicated on the submitted plans shall
be laid out prior to the initial occupation of the development hereby permitted and those
areas shall not thereafter be used for any purpose other than the parking of vehicles.
Reason: To enable vehicles to draw off, park and turn clear of the highway to minimise
danger, obstruction and inconvenience to users of the adjoining highway, in accordance with
policies TR2, TR3, TR11 and TR16 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September
1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007 and
November 2011, and policies CS25 and CS26 of the Core Strategy for Chiltern District
(Adopted November 2011).
The development shall take place in accordance with landscaping details shown on plan
reference 20 PLWL SP50D submitted to the Local Planning Authority on 20 th March 2021.
Reason: In order to maintain, as far as possible, the character of the locality and to ensure a
good quality of amenity for future occupiers of the dwellings hereby permitted, in
accordance with policies GC1, GC4 and H3 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1
September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007
and November 2011, and policy CS20 and CS24 of the Core Strategy for Chiltern District
(Adopted November 2011).

6.

All planting, seeding or turfing comprised in the landscaping scheme approved under
condition 6 of this permission shall be carried out in the first planting and seeding seasons
following the occupation of the buildings or the completion of the development, whichever
is the sooner, and any trees, hedges or plants which within a period of 5 years from the
completion of the development, die, are removed or become seriously damaged or
diseased, shall be replaced in the next planting season with others of similar size and species,
unless the Local Planning Authority gives written consent to any variation.
Reason: In order to maintain, as far as possible, the character of the locality and to ensure
biodiversity enhancements and to ensure a good quality of amenity for future occupiers of
the dwellings hereby permitted, in accordance with policies GC1, GC4 and H3 of the Chiltern
District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001)
consolidated September 2007 and November 2011, and Policy CS20 of the Core Strategy for
Chiltern District (Adopted November 2011).

7.

Prior to occupation of the development hereby permitted, a scheme shall be submitted and
to and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority showing all existing trees on the
land, with details of those to be retained, those to be topped or reduced and those to be
felled clearly being specified. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the
approved details.
Reason: In order to maintain, as far as possible, the character of the locality to ensure a good
quality of amenity for future occupiers of the dwellings hereby permitted and adjacent
Page 12

neighbouring properties, in accordance with policies GC1, GC4 and H3 of the Chiltern District
Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001)
consolidated September 2007 and November 2011, and Policy CS20 of the Core Strategy for
Chiltern District (Adopted November 2011).
8.

Prior to the occupation of the development, a scheme of ecological enhancements shall be
submitted to and approved by the Local Planning Authority to ensure an overall net gain in
biodiversity will be achieved. The scheme will include details of landscape planting of known
benefit to wildlife and provision of artificial roost features, including bird and bat boxes. Any
new fencing will include holes to allow safe passage of hedgehog.
Reason: In the interests of improving biodiversity in accordance with NPPF and Core Strategy
Policy 24: Biodiversity of the Chiltern District Core Strategy and to ensure the survival of
protected and notable species protected by legislation that may otherwise be affected by
the development.

9.

Notwithstanding the provisions of Article 3(1) of the Town & Country Planning (General
Permitted Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that
Order) no development falling within Classes A - C inclusive of Part 1 of Schedule 2 to the
said Order shall be erected, constructed, or placed within the application site unless planning
permission is first granted by the Local Planning Authority.
Reason: In order that the Local Planning Authority can properly consider whether any future
proposals will maintain the openness of the Green Belt and the scenic rural character of the
Chilterns AONB and general character of the locality.

10.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order, with
or without modification), no windows/dormer windows other than those expressly
authorised by this permission, shall be inserted or constructed at any time at first floor level
or above, or in the roofslopes, of the dwellings hereby permitted.
Reason: To protect the amenities and privacy of the adjoining properties and approved
dwellings, in accordance with policy GC3 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1
September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007
and November 2011.

11.

Before the first occupation of the dwellings hereby approved, the first floor windows in the
flank elevations shall be fitted with obscured glazing and any part of the window that is less
than 1.7 metres above the floor of the room in which it is installed shall be non-opening. The
windows shall be permanently retained in that condition thereafter.
Reason: To protect the amenities and privacy of the neighbouring properties, in accordance
with policy GC3 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including
alterations adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007 and November 2011.

12.

Prior to occupation of the residential units hereby approved, the bin and recycling store
shown on plan reference 20 PLWL SP50D (submitted to the Local Planning Authority on 20 th
March 2021) shall be erected in accordance with the details shown on this plan.
Reason: To ensure that adequate waste and recycling storage is provided to serve the
amenities of future occupiers of the development in accordance with policy GC3 of the
Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May
2001) consolidated September 2007 and November 2011.

13.

This permission relates to the details shown on the approved plans as listed below:
List of approved plans:

Page 13

Received
20 Mar 2021
20 Mar 2021
21 Dec 2020
21 Dec 2020
08 Jan 2021

Plan Reference
20 PLWL SP50D
20 PLWL SP51B
PLOT 1 - 20 PLWL P01A
PLOT 2 20 PLWL P02A
AMENDED 19 PLWL SL1A

INFORMATIVE(S)
1.

The Council is the Charging Authority for the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). CIL is a
charge on development; it is tariff-based and enables local authorities to raise funds to pay
for infrastructure.
If you have received a CIL Liability Notice, this Notice will set out the further requirements
that need to be complied with.
If you have not received a CIL Liability Notice, the development may still be liable for CIL.
Before development is commenced, for further information please refer to the following
website https://www.chiltern.gov.uk/CIL-implementation or contact 01494 732792 for
more information.

Page 14

Agenda Item 5

Buckinghamshire Council
www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk

Report to South Area Planning Committee
Application Number:

PL/20/3208/FA

Proposal:

Construction of part single/part two storey rear
extension. Demolition of existing conservatory and
detached outbuilding. Replacement of garage door with 2
windows

Site Location:

Gable Cottage, Elm Road, Penn, High Wycombe,
Buckinghamshire, HP10 8LB

Applicant:

Mr and Mrs Bahia

Case Officer:

Charenjit Braich

Ward(s) affected:

Penn Wood & Old Amersham

Parish-Town Council:

Penn Parish Council

Date valid application received:

25 September 2020

Statutory determination date:

7 April 2021

Recommendation

Conditional Permission

1.0

Summary & Recommendation/ Reason for Planning Committee Consideration
1.1

1.2
1.3
2.0

Permission is sought for the construction of a part single/part two storey rear
extension, as well as the demolition of an existing conservatory and detached
outbuilding.
The application is before Committee as the Local Member Councillor Waters has called
the application in, if the officer recommendation is for approval.
The recommendation for the proposal is to grant conditional permission.

Description of Proposed Development
2.1

This application proposes a single storey extension from the rear of the existing
property, which will involve the demolition of the 1988 conservatory and small
detached outbuilding. It is noted that consent was provided within the 1988 consent
for the removal of this outbuilding.

2.2

At first floor an extension is proposed to the existing rear gable to provide an increased
floor area and allow the existing walk through Toy Room to be used as a bedroom,
whilst allowing the bedroom above the garage to be accessed independently of this
existing space. The bedroom over the garage will then be repurposed as a home office.

2.3

To the frontage of the building the existing garage doors, which are no longer
functional due to the previous conversion of the garage area, are to be removed and

Page 15

replaced with brickwork and two steel frames windows. These will be of a similar style
and proportions to the existing windows on the front elevation of the property.
2.4

The application is accompanied by:
a)
b)
c)

3.0

4.0

5.0

Design and access Statement
Built heritage statement
Tree report

Relevant Planning History
3.1

CH/1988/2050/FA - Rear conservatory. Conditional permission. Implemented.

3.2

CH/2009/0985/FA - Detached single storey outbuilding. Withdrawn

3.3

CH/2009/1247/FA - Detached single storey outbuilding. Conditional permission.
Implemented.

3.4

PL/18/3581/HB - Listed building application for replacement of door. Conditional
permission

3.5

PL/20/3209/HB - Listed Building Consent for construction of part single/part two
storey rear extension. Demolition of existing conservatory and detached outbuilding.
Replacement of garage door with 2 windows. Sister application, to be determined
alongside the subject application.

Summary of Representations
4.1

Consultation response from Conservation Officer: No objection.

4.2

Consultation response from Archaeology Officer: No objection.

4.3

Parish Council: Object.

4.4

13 letters of objection have been received from 8 neighbouring properties.

4.5

12 letters of support have been received from 10 neighbouring properties.

Policy Considerations and Evaluation


National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019.



National Design Guide, October 2019



Core Strategy for Chiltern District - Adopted November 2011:



Chiltern District Local Plan adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted
29 May 2001), consolidated September 2007 and November 2011.



Chiltern and South Bucks Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL) Charging Schedule

Principle and Location of Development
Core Strategy Policies:
CS1 (The spatial strategy)
CS2 (Amount and distribution of residential development 2006-2026)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC1, LB1, LB2, LB3, CA1, CA2, H11, H13, H14, H15, TR11, TR16, AS1
5.1

The site is located within the Penn and Tylers Green Conservation Area and an
Established Residential Area of Special Character, where development should maintain
the special character of that area. Gable Cottage is also a Grade II Listed Building where

Page 16

development must preserve its character and appearance as a building of Special
Architectural or Historic Interest. The rear garden borders the Green Belt.
5.2

The NPPF (2019) at section 16 "Conserving and enhancing the historic environment"
at paragraph 185 endorses a positive strategy for the conservation and enjoyment of
the historic environment. Local planning authorities should take into account the
desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and putting
them to viable uses consistent with their conservation, the benefits that conservation
of the historic environment can bring, and the desirability of new development making
a positive contribution to local character and distinctiveness. Paragraph 193 advises
that, when considering the impact of development on the significance of a designated
heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset's conservation, irrespective
of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or less than
substantial harm to its significance.

5.3

In Paragraph 195 states that proposals that would lead to substantial harm to (or total
loss of significance of) a designated heritage asset should normally be refused, unless
it can be demonstrated that the substantial harm or total loss is necessary to achieve
substantial public benefits that outweigh that harm or loss. Paragraph 196 advises that
less than substantial harm to the significance of a designated heritage asset should be
weighed against the public benefits of the proposal including, where appropriate,
securing its optimum viable use.

5.4

Core Strategy policy 8 states that the protection and, where appropriate,
enhancement of the District's historic environment is of paramount importance. In
particular, nationally designated historic assets and their settings, for example
Scheduled Ancient Monuments and Grade I, II* and II listed buildings, will have the
highest level of protection.

5.5

With the above in mind, it is noted that whist the principle of development is
acceptable, the proposal must demonstrate tangible public benefits that override any
harm that the increase in the size of the structure will provoke. (Paras 186-202 of the
NPPF, BS 7913 ss. 16 & 66 of the Planning (LBCA) Act 1990.)

Raising the quality of place making and design/Historic environment (or Conservation Area
or Listed Building Issues)
Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring that the development is sustainable)
CS20 (Design and environmental quality)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC1 (Design of development throughout the district)
GC4 (Landscaping throughout the district)
H11 (Distance between flank elevation(s) of a proposed multi-storey dwelling and boundary
of dwelling's curtilage throughout the district)
LB1 (Protection of special architectural or historic interest of Listed Buildings throughout the
district)
LB2 (Protection of setting of Listed Buildings throughout the district)
CA1 (Works to buildings in Conservation Areas as defined on the Proposals Map)
CA2 (Views Within, out of, or into the Conservation Areas as defined on the Proposals Map)
CA4 (Demolition of unlisted buildings in Conservation Areas as defined on the Proposals
Map)

Page 17

5.6

Gable Cottage is located on Elm Road in Penn, which falls within a designated
Conservation Area. The cottage takes an end position in a row of similar aged cottages.
Gable Cottage was constructed in around 1752 and was listed on 17th March 1982,
along with the adjoining cottage Stratfords. These cottages have 18th century brick
frontages facing Elm Road with timber framing. Gable Cottage is small in scale, with
the upper storey mostly in the roof structure, with low ridge heights.

5.7

This part of the conservation area consists of a number of quality buildings, both listed
and unlisted. Gable Cottage is attached to Stratfords Cottage, and is an attractive
period cottage originating from the early 18th century. The cottage is a fairly well
preserved two storey building, traditionally timber-framed, with a brick façade facing
the street and tile hanging to the upper floors to the rear. The property has been
extended in the C20, and comprises a C18 historic core, with a rear kitchen and
bathroom extension, a part-converted garage to the North and a late C20 conservatory
extending out from the rear façade on the ground floor. The mid-C20 extensions are
gabled in form, echoing the gables to the front and are steeply pitched; these
extensions blend in well, and the windows are leaded lights in steel frames with
mullions and transoms. However, this phase of work has removed most of the original
rear wall of the cottage, and it is not always easy to reconstruct the building’s original
form. The conservatory is rather a poor quality construction in timber, and could
benefit from a redesign.

5.8

Alterations to the principal elevation of the property are limited to, the removal of the
1950’s wooden garage doors and its replacement with matching brickwork and steel
framed windows of a complementary scale and style to those employed within the
historic façade of the original building. The Conservation Officer has stated that ‘the
garage wing to the north is not of any great significance, although the way in which it
steps down from the main building should remain, this is appropriate.’ Accordingly, it
is considered that the proposed changes to the front facade integrate satisfactorily
with the host dwelling and would have minimal impact on this part of the Conservation
Area, with the significance of the Penn and Tylers Green Conservation Area as a whole
being preserved.

5.9

A single storey extension is proposed to be added to the rear of the existing property.
The extension is designed to be low in form using traditional materials, of brick walling,
lead rolled roof and steel framed windows and doors. Light will be drawn into the
extension via low profiled steel, flat glass roof lanterns. The extension will be attached
to a modern extension to the rear of the existing structure and would project a further
4.7m. In regards to the projection of the extension, it should be noted that the scheme
was revised and the amended proposal has responded to heritage concerns and
revised the scale to reflect those concerns. The projection of the extension is now
similar to that of the neighbouring property, Stratford’s. It is considered that this
element of the scheme has been designed to be contextual and reference the
architectural qualities and materiality of the host building. The material palette
references the host building and the local context, with this in mind, no objections are
raised in this regard.

5.10 A first-floor extension projecting 4m from an existing gable to the north of the property
is also proposed it would be clad in weathered vertical timber boarding which would
define it as a distinct extension, in contrast to the tile hanging of the existing first floor
rear structure. Neighbours have raised concern that this element of the proposal is
overly large. Whilst it is noted that this element of the proposal is reasonable in scale
Page 18

and bulk it is considered that the addition will maintain the character of an articulated
rear elevation characterised by gables. The proposal will also maintain the varied
roofscape which typifies the existing property and the properties in the near vicinity.
Accordingly, it is considered that the proposals would preserve the architectural and
historic interest of the listed building and therefore complies with sections 16 of the
Act.
5.11 The demolition of the single storey structures in the rear garden, which was formerly
used as a WC, was previously approved for demolition under application
CH/1988/2050/FA. Given the rundown nature of the unused building and the previous
permission to demolish it, there are no strong objections to its demolition.
5.12 The Historic Buildings Officer has concluded that the proposal, as amended, is
generally considered to be acceptable from the listed building aspect and would not
result in substantial harm to the significance of the listed building or to the character
and appearance of the conservation area. As such the proposal is considered to
preserve and enhance the character and appearance of the application Listed building,
adjacent listed buildings and the Conservation Area and be in accordance with
Paragraph 196 of the NPPF and policy LB1 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1
September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) Consolidated September
2007 and November 2011.
Amenity of existing and future residents
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC3 (Protection of amenities throughout the district)
H14 (Safeguarding the amenities of neighbours)
H12 (Private residential garden areas throughout the district)
5.13 Policy GC3 of the Local Plan seeks to achieve good standards of amenity for the future
occupiers of development and to protect the amenities enjoyed by the occupants of
adjoining and neighbouring properties. Local Plan Policies GC2, GC3 and H14 relate to
the protection of residential amenities throughout the District. In terms of the design
of the resultant dwelling, in comparison to the existing dwelling, the rearwards spread
is significantly increased. That said, the design has been carefully considered to
minimise its impacts upon neighbouring dwellings.
5.14 The adjoining listed dwelling known as Stratfords lies on the southern boundary, and
the single storey rear element of the proposal would be nearest to this property. Given
the modest height of this element of the proposal, it is not considered that this current
level of amenity enjoyed by the occupiers of Stratfords would be reduced as a result
of the scheme.
5.15 The property to the north is no.17 Elm Road; the separation distance between the flank
wall of this property and the flank wall of the first floor extension would be over 16m.
Whilst it might be possible for the extensions to cast some shadow over the
outbuildings and courtyard area, it would not be considered to be significant to the
point which could warrant refusal of this application. Furthermore, the siting of the
proposed extensions would not breach the splay line drawn by a line at 45 degrees at
first floor or 60 degrees at ground floor from the nearest habitable windows. With the
exception of one roof light there are no flank windows proposed.
5.16 It is considered that sufficient spacing between the first floor extension and either
neighbouring property is provided which reduces the potential for the proposed

Page 19

extension to be overbearing when viewed from neighbouring amenity space. For these
reasons, it is considered that the resultant dwelling will have little alteration to existing
amenity levels serving adjoining properties. Given the siting and design of the
replacement dwelling, it is not considered that the proposal would have an adverse
impact regarding the privacy or amenity of adjoining properties and is therefore
acceptable having regard to Policies GC2, GC3 and H14.
Transport matters and parking
Local Plan Saved Policies:
TR2 (Highway aspects of planning applications throughout the district)
TR11 (Provision of off-street parking for developments throughout the district)
TR12 (Relaxation of parking standards throughout the district)
TR15 (Design of parking areas throughout the district)
TR16 (Parking and manoeuvring standards throughout the district)
5.17 Policy TR16 of the Local Plan states that where dwellings have a gross floor area of 120
sqm or more, 3 car parking spaces should be provided. The property currently has a
floor area of more than 120 sqm, and has one parking space. So there is already a
shortfall of two spaces, but this is an existing situation. The proposed extensions do
not alter the existing parking arrangement and do not generate a requirement for any
additional parking. As the shortfall is an existing situation and would not be
exacerbated, no objections can be raised having regard to Policies TR11 and TR16.
Environmental issues
Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring that development is sustainable)
CS20 (Design and environmental quality)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC4 (Landscaping)
5.18 There is a hedgerow that currently acts as a boundary between it and Stratfords. The
proposal does not include the removal of this hedge, and the submitted tree report
states that any significant incursion into its calculated root protection area is unlikely.
Concerns from neighbours regarding damage to trees off site have been raised. The
submitted tree report addresses these trees. The Council’s Tree Officer has been
consulted, and these comments will be verbally reported at the Planning Committee
meeting.
6.0

Weighing and balancing of issues / Overall Assessment
6.1

This section brings together the assessment that has so far been set out in order to
weigh and balance relevant planning considerations in order to reach a conclusion on
the application.

6.2

In determining the planning application, section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be determined in accordance with the
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In addition,
Section 143 of the Localism Act amends Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning
Act relating to the determination of planning applications and states that in dealing
with planning applications, the authority shall have regard to:
a.

Provision of the development plan insofar as they are material,

Page 20

b. Any local finance considerations, so far as they are material to the application
(such as CIL if applicable), and,
c. Any other material considerations

7.0

8.0

6.3

As set out above it is considered that, the proposed development would accord with
the Development Plan policies.

6.4

Local Planning Authorities, when making decisions of a strategic nature, must have due
regard, through the Equalities Act, to reducing the inequalities which may result from
socio-economic disadvantage. In this instance, it is not considered that this proposal
would disadvantage any sector of society to a harmful extent.

Working with the applicant / agent
7.1

In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF (2019) the Council approach decisiontaking in a positive and creative way taking a proactive approach to development
proposals focused on solutions and work proactively with applicants to secure
developments.

7.2

The Council works with the applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner by
offering a pre-application advice service, and as appropriate updating applications /
agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of their application.

7.3

In this instance, the Officers consider the application to be acceptable as submitted
and no assistance was required.

Recommendation: Conditional Permission
Subject to the following conditions:-

1.

The development to which this permission relates must be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To prevent the accumulation of unimplemented planning permissions, to enable the
Local Planning Authority to review the suitability of the development in the light of altered
circumstances and to comply with the provisions of Section 91 (1) of the Town & Country
Planning Act 1990, as amended.

2.

Before any construction work commences above ground level, named types or details of the
facing materials and roofing materials to be used for the external construction of the
development hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the
approved materials.
Reason: To safeguard the special architectural or historic interest of the listed building and
conservation area in accordance with policies LB1, CA1 and CA2 of The Chiltern District Local
Plan Adopted 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) Consolidated September
2007 and November 2011, policy CS4 of the Core Strategy for Chiltern District, Adopted
November 2011, the provisions of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and the
Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

3.

Prior to installation of the rooflight, sectional drawings through the rooflight, eaves and roof,
together with details of the glazing bars for the small panned windows shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be
implemented in accordance with the approved details and no alterations shall take place
thereafter.

Page 21

Reason: To safeguard the special architectural or historic interest of the listed building in
accordance with policy LB1 of The Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1997 (including
alterations adopted 29 May 2001) Consolidated September 2007 and November 2011, policy
CS4 of the Core Strategy for Chiltern District, Adopted November 2011, the provisions of the
National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990.
4.

Notwithstanding the provisions of the Town and Country Planning (General Permitted
Development) (England) Order 2015 (or any Order revoking or re-enacting that Order, with
or without modification), no additional windows shall be inserted or constructed at any time
at first floor level or above in either of the flank elevations of the extensions permitted.
Reason: In order that the Local Planning Authority can properly consider whether any future
proposals would be detrimental to the amenities of the adjoining neighbouring properties,
in accordance with policies GC1 and GC3 of the Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1
September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001) consolidated September 2007
and November 2011, and policies CS20 of the Core Strategy for Chiltern District (Adopted
November 2011).

5.

This permission relates to the details shown on the approved plans as listed below:
List of approved plans
Received

Plan Reference

25.09.2020
25.09.2020
25.09.2020
26.01.2021
26.01.2021
26.01.2021
25.09.2020
25.09.2020
09.03.2021
26.01.2021
25.09.2020
25.09.2020
26.01.2021
26.01.2021
26.01.2021
26.01.2021
26.01.2021
26.01.2021
26.01.2021

4263 PLA 1.01 A3
4263 PLA 1.05 A3
4263 PLA 1.06 A3
4263 PLA 3.02 A
4263 PLA 3.04 A
4263 PLA 3.05 A
4263 PLA 1.03
4263 PLA 1.04
ARBORICULTURAL IMPLICATIONS ASSESSMENT
MATERIAL DETAILS
BUILT HERITAGE STATEMENT
PLANNING AND D AND A STATEMENT
4263 PLA 3.06 A3
4263 PLA 3.10
4263 PLA 3.03 A
4263 PLA 3.07
4263 PLA 3.08
4263 PLA 3.09
4263 PLA 1.02

INFORMATIVE(S)
1.

The Council is the Charging Authority for the Community Infrastructure Levy (CIL). CIL is a
charge on development; it is tariff-based and enables local authorities to raise funds to pay
for infrastructure.
If you have received a CIL Liability Notice, this Notice will set out the further requirements
that need to be complied with.

Page 22

If you have not received a CIL Liability Notice, the development may still be liable for CIL.
Before development is commenced, for further information please refer to the following
website https://www.chiltern.gov.uk/CIL-implementation or contact 01494 732792 for
more information.
2.

Due to the close proximity of the site to existing residential properties, the applicants'
attention is drawn to the Considerate Constructors Scheme initiative. This initiative
encourages contractors and construction companies to adopt a considerate and respectful
approach to construction works, so that neighbours are not unduly affected by noise, smells,
operational hours, vehicles parking at the site or making deliveries, and general disruption
caused by the works.
By signing up to the scheme, contractors and construction companies commit to being
considerate and good neighbours, as well as being clean, respectful, safe, environmentally
conscious, responsible and accountable. The Council highly recommends the Considerate
Constructors Scheme as a way of avoiding problems and complaints from local residents and
further information on how to participate can be found at www.ccscheme.org.uk.

Page 23

APPENDIX A: Consultation Responses and Representations
Councillor Comments
Councillor Waters, neither objecting to or supporting the Planning Application, stated the following
‘I would like to call in the application for decision by the Planning Committee if the Officer
Recommendation is for approval. I have concerns on the potential impact on listed buildings, of the
scale and change of appearance. it is a sensitive area within the Conservation area and needs careful
consideration’.
Parish/Town Council Comments
Objection – ‘we remain concerned about the change in character and impact on a Grade II listed
cottage, notably the scale of the rear extension and gable and the change in appearance. We request
the Historic Building's Officer's report to be published. Because of the slope, the plans are inaccurate
and do not adequately reflect the impact on neighbouring properties. We request the Tree Officer
look at the proposals, as building this close to the tree screen will negatively impact Conservation
Area trees’.
Consultation Responses
Historic Buildings officer:
You have been successful in moderating the extent and the impact of the proposals, and I am
therefore happy to recommend approval for the development. The only items that we lack are
sections through the rooflight, eaves and roof, plus details of the glazing bars for the small panned
windows. Stick on glazing bars are not going to be acceptable I’m afraid and so double casements
are the only energy efficient alternative. A materials schedule would be helpful as not all materials
appear to be on the plans.
Representations
13 letters of objection have been received from 8 Neighbours which have been summarised below:










Detriment to Conservation Area
Detriment to Listed Building
Loss of Privacy
Loss of View
Loss/Damage to Trees
Overshadowing/bearing
Poor Design
Residential Amenity
Traffic/Parking

12 letters of support have been received from 10 Neighbours which have been summarised below:





No impact to Listed Building
No impact to conservation area
Extension is for elderly parent, to facilitate multi generation living.
Design would improve and enhance

Page 24

APPENDIX B: Site Location Plan

Do not scale – this map is indicative only Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s
Stationary Office © Crown Copyright 2012. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Buckinghamshire Council, PSMA Licence Number 100023578

Page 25

This page is intentionally left blank

Agenda Item 6

Buckinghamshire Council
www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk

Report to South Area Planning Committee
Application Number:

PL/20/3209/HB

Proposal:

Listed Building Consent for construction of part
single/part two storey rear extension. Demolition of
existing conservatory and detached outbuilding.
Replacement of garage door with 2 windows

Site Location:

Gable Cottage, Elm Road, Penn, High Wycombe,
Buckinghamshire, HP10 8LB

Applicant:

Mr and Mrs Bahia

Case Officer:

Charenjit Braich

Ward(s) affected:

Penn Wood & Old Amersham

Parish-Town Council:

Penn Parish Council

Date valid application received:

25 September 2020

Statutory determination date:

7 April 2021

Recommendation

Conditional Consent

1.0

2.0

Summary & Recommendation/ Reason for Planning Committee Consideration
1.1

The application seeks listed building consent for the construction of a part single/part
two storey rear extension, as well as the demolition of an existing conservatory and
detached outbuilding.

1.2

The application is before Committee as the Local Member Councillor Waters has called
the concurrent planning application in, if the officer recommendation is for approval.
For completeness, both applications have been brought to the Planning Committee by
Officers.

1.3

The recommendation for the proposal is to grant conditional consent.

Description of Proposed Development
2.1

This application proposes a single storey extension from the rear of the existing
property, which will involve the demolition of the 1988 conservatory and small
detached outbuilding. It is noted that consent was provided within the 1988 consent
for the removal of this outbuilding.

2.2

At first floor an extension is proposed to the existing rear gable to provide an increased
floor area and allow the existing walk through Toy Room to be used as a bedroom,
whilst allowing the bedroom above the garage to be accessed independently of this
existing space. The bedroom over the garage will then be repurposed as a home office.

Page 27

2.3

To the frontage of the building the existing garage doors, which are no longer
functional due to the previous conversion of the garage area, are to be removed and
replaced with brickwork and two steel frames windows. These will be of a similar style
and proportions to the existing windows on the front elevation of the property.

2.4

The application is accompanied by:
a)
b)
c)

3.0

Relevant Planning History
3.1

4.0

5.0

Design and access Statement
Built heritage statement
Tree report

PL/20/3208/FA - Construction of part single/part two storey rear extension.
Demolition of existing conservatory and detached outbuilding. Replacement of garage
door with 2 windows. Sister application, to be determined alongside the subject
application.

Summary of Representations
4.1

Consultation response from Conservation Officer: No objection.

4.2

Parish Council: Object.

4.3

13 letters of objection have been received from 8 neighbouring properties.

4.4

12 letters of support have been received from 10 neighbouring properties.

Policy Considerations and Evaluation


National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019.



National Design Guide, October 2019



Core Strategy for Chiltern District - Adopted November 2011:



Chiltern District Local Plan adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted
29 May 2001), consolidated September 2007 and November 2011.

Principle and Location of Development
Core Strategy Policies:
CS1 (The spatial strategy)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC1, LB1, LB2, LB3, CA1, CA2 and CA4
5.1

Sections 16 and 66 the Planning (Listed Buildings and Conservation Areas) Act 1990
require the LPA to have regard to the desirability of preserving the building or its
setting, or any features of special architectural or historic interest which it possesses.

5.2

The application building is a Grade II Listed Building and is a designated heritage asset.

5.3

Paragraph 192 of the National Planning Policy Framework 2019 (hereafter referred to
as "the NPPF 2019") states:
In determining applications, local planning authorities should take account of:
a) the desirability of sustaining and enhancing the significance of heritage assets and
putting them to viable uses consistent with their conservation;
b) the positive contribution that conservation of heritage assets can make to
sustainable communities including their economic vitality; and

Page 28

c) the desirability of new development making a positive contribution to local
character and distinctiveness.
5.4

Paragraph 193 of the NPPF 2019 continues:
When considering the impact of a proposed development on the significance of a
designated heritage asset, great weight should be given to the asset's conservation
(and the more important the asset, the greater the weight should be). This is
irrespective of whether any potential harm amounts to substantial harm, total loss or
less than substantial harm to its significance.

5.5

Paragraph 196 of the NPPF 2019 states:

Where a development proposal will lead to less than substantial harm to the significance of
a designated heritage asset, this harm should be weighed against the public benefits
of the proposal including, where appropriate, securing its optimum viable use.
Impact on the special architectural or historic interest of the Listed Building and its setting
Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring that the development is sustainable)
LB1 (Protection of special architectural or historic interest of Listed Buildings throughout the
district)
LB2 (Protection of setting of Listed Buildings throughout the district)
LB3 (Demolition of Listed Buildings throughout the district)
CA1 (Works to buildings in Conservation Areas as defined on the Proposals Map)
CA2 (Views Within, out of, or into the Conservation Areas as defined on the Proposals Map)
CA4 (Demolition of unlisted buildings in Conservation Areas as defined on the Proposals
Map)
5.6

Gable Cottage, is located on Elm Road in Penn, which falls within a designated
Conservation Area. The cottage takes an end position in a row of similar aged cottages.
Gable Cottage was constructed in around 1752 and was listed on 17th March 1982,
along with the adjoining cottage Stratfords, these cottages have 18th century brick
frontages facing Elm Road with timber framing. Gable cottage is small in scale, with the
upper storey mostly in the roof structure, with low ridge heights. The cottage is a fairly
well preserved early C18 two storey building, traditionally timber-framed, with a brick
façade facing the street and tile hanging to the upper floors to the rear. The property
has been extended in the C20, and comprises a C18 historic core, with a rear kitchen
and bathroom extension, a part-converted garage to the North and a late C20
conservatory extending out from the rear façade on the ground floor. The mid-C20
extensions are gabled in form, echoing the gables to the front and are steeply pitched;
these extensions blend in well, and the windows are leaded lights in steel frames with
mullions and transoms. However, this phase of work has removed most of the original
rear wall of the cottage, and it is not always easy to reconstruct the building’s original
form. The conservatory is rather a poor quality construction in timber, and could
benefit from a redesign.

5.7

Alterations to the principle elevation of the property are limited to, the removal of the
1950’s wooden garage doors and its replacement with matching brickwork and steel
framed windows of a complementary scale and style to those employed within the
historic façade of the original building. The Conservation officer has stated that ‘the
garage wing to the north is not of any great significance, although the way in which it
steps down from the main building should remain, this is appropriate.’ Accordingly, it

Page 29

is considered that the proposed changes to the front facade integrate satisfactorily
with the host dwelling and would have minimal impact on the listed building.
5.8

A single storey extension is proposed to be added to the rear of the existing property.
The extension is designed to be low in form using traditional materials, of brick walling,
lead rolled roof and steel framed windows and doors. Light will be drawn into the
extension via low profiled steel, flat glass roof lanterns. The extension will be attached
to a modern extension to the rear of the existing structure and would project a further
4.7m. In regards to the projection of the extension, it should be noted that the scheme
was revised and the amended proposal has responded to heritage concerns and
revised the scale to reflect those concerns. The projection of the extension is now
similar to that of the neighbouring property, Stratford’s. It is considered that this
element of the scheme has been designed to be contextual and reference the
architectural qualities and materiality of the host building. The material palette
references the host building and the local context, with this in mind, no objections are
raised in this regard.

5.9

Turning to the rear, as mentioned above the existing extensions have removed most
of the original rear wall of the cottage. A first-floor extension projecting 4m from an
existing gable to the north of the property is also proposed it would be clad in
weathered vertical timber boarding which would define it as a distinct extension, in
contrast to the tile hanging of the existing first floor rear structure. Whilst it is noted
that this element of the proposal is large in scale and bulk it is considered that the
addition will maintain the character of an articulated rear elevation characterised by
gables. The proposal will also maintain the varied roofscape which typifies the existing
property and the properties in the near vicinity. Accordingly, it is considered that the
proposals would preserve the architectural and historic interest of the listed building.

5.10 The demolition of the single storey structures in the rear garden, which was formally
used as a WC, was previously approved for demolition under application
CH/1988/2050/FA. Given the rundown nature of the unused building and the previous
permission to demolition it, the loss of this outbuilding is not considered to harm the
setting of the Listed Building.
5.11 The Historic Buildings Officer has concluded that the proposal, as amended, is
generally considered to be acceptable from the listed building aspect and would not
result in substantial harm to the significance of the listed building. As such the proposal
is considered to preserve and enhance the character and appearance of the application
Listed building, adjacent listed buildings and the Conservation Area and be in
accordance with Paragraph 196 of the NPPF and policy LB1 of the Chiltern District Local
Plan Adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted 29 May 2001)
Consolidated September 2007 and November 2011.
6.0

Weighing and balancing of issues / Overall Assessment
6.1

This section brings together the assessment that has so far been set out in order to
weigh and balance relevant planning considerations in order to reach a conclusion on
the application.

6.2

In determining the planning application, section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be determined in accordance with the
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In addition,
Section 143 of the Localism Act amends Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning

Page 30

Act relating to the determination of planning applications and states that in dealing
with planning applications, the authority shall have regard to:
a. Provision of the development plan insofar as they are material,
b. Any local finance considerations, so far as they are material to the application
(such as CIL if applicable), and,
c. Any other material considerations

7.0

8.0

6.3

As set out above it is considered that, the proposed development would accord with
the Development Plan policies.

6.4

Local Planning Authorities, when making decisions of a strategic nature, must have due
regard, through the Equalities Act, to reducing the inequalities which may result from
socio-economic disadvantage. In this instance, it is not considered that this proposal
would disadvantage any sector of society to a harmful extent.

Working with the applicant / agent
7.1

In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF (2019) the Council approach decisiontaking in a positive and creative way taking a proactive approach to development
proposals focused on solutions and work proactively with applicants to secure
developments.

7.2

The Council works with the applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner by
offering a pre-application advice service, and as appropriate updating applications /
agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of their application.

7.3

In this instance, the Officers consider the application to be acceptable as submitted
and no assistance was required.

Recommendation: Conditional Consent
Subject to the following conditions:-

1.

The development to which this consent relates must be begun not later than the expiration
of three years beginning with the date on which the consent is granted.
Reason: To comply with the provisions of Section 18(1) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990, as amended, to prevent the accumulation of unimplemented
listed building consents and to enable the Local Planning Authority to review the situation at
the end of this period if the development has not begun.

2.

Prior to installation of the rooflight, sectional drawings through the rooflight, eaves and roof,
together with details of the glazing bars for the small panned windows shall be submitted to
and approved in writing by the Local Planning Authority. The development shall be
implemented in accordance with the approved details and no alterations shall take place
thereafter.
Reason: To safeguard the special architectural or historic interest of the listed building in
accordance with policy LB1 of The Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1997 (including
alterations adopted 29 May 2001) Consolidated September 2007 and November 2011, policy
CS4 of the Core Strategy for Chiltern District, Adopted November 2011, the provisions of the
National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

3.

Pursuant to the provisions of Section 8 (1) & (2) of the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990, the consent hereby granted expressly authorises the

Page 31

execution of the works shown on the deposited plans hereby approved. This consent relates
to the details shown on the approved plans as listed below.
Reason: To safeguard the special architectural or historic interest of the listed building in
accordance with policy LB1 of The Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1997 (including
alterations adopted 29 May 2001) Consolidated September 2007 and November 2011, policy
CS4 of the Core Strategy for Chiltern District, Adopted November 2011, the provisions of the
National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990.
4.

Before any construction work commences above ground level, named types or details of the
facing materials and roofing materials to be used for the external construction of the
development hereby permitted shall be submitted to and approved in writing by the Local
Planning Authority. The development shall be implemented in accordance with the
approved materials.
Reason: To safeguard the special architectural or historic interest of the listed building in
accordance with policy LB1 of The Chiltern District Local Plan Adopted 1997 (including
alterations adopted 29 May 2001) Consolidated September 2007 and November 2011, policy
CS4 of the Core Strategy for Chiltern District, Adopted November 2011, the provisions of the
National Planning Policy Framework 2019 and the Planning (Listed Buildings and
Conservation Areas) Act 1990.

5.

This consent relates to the details shown on the approved plans as listed below:
List of approved plans
Received

Plan Reference

25.09.2020
25.09.2020
25.09.2020
26.01.2021
26.01.2021
26.01.2021
25.09.2020
25.09.2020
09.03.2021
26.01.2021
25.09.2020
25.09.2020
26.01.2021
26.01.2021
26.01.2021
26.01.2021
26.01.2021
26.01.2021
26.01.2021

4263 PLA 1.01 A3
4263 PLA 1.05 A3
4263 PLA 1.06 A3
4263 PLA 3.02 A
4263 PLA 3.04 A
4263 PLA 3.05 A
4263 PLA 1.03
4263 PLA 1.04
ARBORICULTURAL IMPLICATIONS ASSESSMENT
MATERIAL DETAILS
BUILT HERITAGE STATEMENT
PLANNING AND D AND A STATEMENT
4263 PLA 3.06 A3
4263 PLA 3.10
4263 PLA 3.03 A
4263 PLA 3.07
4263 PLA 3.08
4263 PLA 3.09
4263 PLA 1.02

Page 32

APPENDIX A: Consultation Responses and Representations
Councillor Comments
Councillor Waters, neither objecting to or supporting the Planning Application, stated the following
‘I would like to call in the application for decision by the Planning Committee if the Officer
Recommendation is for approval. I have concerns on the potential impact on listed buildings, of the
scale and change of appearance. it is a sensitive area within the Conservation area and needs careful
consideration’.
Parish/Town Council Comments
Objection – ‘we remain concerned about the change in character and impact on a Grade II listed
cottage, notably the scale of the rear extension and gable and the change in appearance. We request
the Historic Building's Officer's report to be published. Because of the slope, the plans are inaccurate
and do not adequately reflect the impact on neighbouring properties. We request the Tree Officer
look at the proposals, as building this close to the tree screen will negatively impact Conservation
Area trees’.
Consultation Responses
Historic Buildings officer:
You have been successful in moderating the extent and the impact of the proposals, and I am
therefore happy to recommend approval for the development. The only items that we lack are
sections through the rooflight, eaves and roof, plus details of the glazing bars for the small panned
windows. Stick on glazing bars are not going to be acceptable I’m afraid and so double casements
are the only energy efficient alternative. A materials schedule would be helpful as not all materials
appear to be on the plans.
Representations
13 letters of objection have been received from 8 Neighbours which have been summarised
below:










Detriment to Conservation Area
Detriment to Listed Building
Loss of Privacy
Loss of View
Loss/Damage to Trees
Overshadowing/bearing
Poor Design
Residential Amenity
Traffic/Parking

12 letters of support have been received from 10 Neighbours which have been summarised below:
 No impact to Listed Building
 No impact to conservation area
 Extension is for elderly parent, to facilitate multi generation living.
 Design would improve and enhance

Page 33

APPENDIX B: Site Location Plan

Do not scale – this map is indicative only Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s
Stationary Office © Crown Copyright 2012. Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings.
Buckinghamshire Council, PSMA Licence Number 100023578

Page 34

Agenda Item 7

Buckinghamshire Council
www.buckinghamshire.gov.uk

Report to East Area Planning Committee
Application Number:

PL/21/0770/FA

Proposal:

Southeastern turning circle extension to existing car park

Site location:

Buryfield Car Park, Link Road, Great Missenden, Buckinghamshire

Applicant:

Buckinghamshire Council

Case Officer:

Mr Mike Shires

Ward(s) affected:

Great Missenden

Parish-Town Council:

Great Missenden Parish Council

Valid date:

2 March 2021

Determination date:

27 April 2021

Recommendation:

Defer to approve, subject to the expiry of the consultation period.

1.0

2.0

Summary & Recommendation/ Reason for Planning Committee Consideration
1.1

The application proposes a turning circle for coaches, to transport pupils to and from
Great Missenden Church of England Combined School, in the corner of the school
playing field.

1.2

The application has been brought about due to the current unsatisfactory provision for
coach turning in the adjacent Parish Council car park, where pupils are currently
dropped off and collected. Presently, coaches have to drive in forward gear to the
drop-off point in front of the school gates, then reverse back through the car park to
turn in reverse gear, before exiting to the Link Road. This proposal would allow
coaches to turn and exit without reversing.

1.3

The proposal is considered to preserve the openness of the Green Belt, the setting of
the nearby conservation area and would have significant highway safety benefits.
Although a small section would be on playing field land, Sport England does not object
to the application.

1.4

The application has been reported for determination by the East Area Planning
Committee, as the Council is the applicant.

1.5

The recommendation is to defer, to grant conditional permission, subject to the expiry
of the consultation period. It should be noted that this expires on 9 th April 2021, so a
decision can be issued on 10th April.

Description of Proposed Development
2.1

The site is located within the Green Belt and Chilterns AONB. It is located outside the
Great Missenden Conservation Area, but borders it along the SW edge of the site. A

Page 35

public footpath runs through the site, along Buryfield Lane, linking The Square at the
end of Church Street with the Link Road.
2.2

3.0

The proposal is for a new coach turning circle, creating a new curved area of
hardstanding in the corner of the playing field. It would be accessed via the Link Road
car park, and a recently permitted extended area of this car park. Coaches would circle
around in a clockwise direction, through the newly proposed area of hardstanding,
allowing them to stop and drop off school children, before exiting the car park to the
Link Road in forward gear. The application proposes new hedging and fencing around
the turning circle, along with small lamp columns and bollards.

Relevant Planning History
3.1

Relevant planning history for the site:
CH/2005/2074/FA - Formation of staff car park and setting down area on north-west
end of playing fields. Conditional permission granted on 4th May 2006, but the
planning permission was never implemented. This was for a considerably larger area
of hardstanding in a similar location, to create a staff car park and dropping off area.

4.0

3.2

PL/20/0325/FA - Increase the existing car park at Buryfield Recreation Ground with
changes to landscaping. Conditional permission granted on 17 th April 2020. This car
park extension relates to the adjacent Parish Council car park and has now been laid
out. The new coach turning circle will utilise this area for part of the initial coach
turning facility. The current application also proposes changes to the layout of the
parking spaces originally approved under this application.

3.3

PL/20/0723/FA - Resurfacing works on an existing semi-formal car park, including the
creation of 37 formalised car parking spaces and a two-way carriageway, a new
pedestrian footpath, the installation of low-level lighting and the erection of a new,
electric vehicle access gate and a new pedestrian access gate and fencing. Conditional
permission granted on 24th June 2020. This relates to the continuation of the linear,
staff parking, area, within the grounds of the school, and adjoining the currently
proposed coach turning circle.

3.4

PL/21/0774/VRC - Variation of Condition 5 (approved plans) of planning permission
PL/20/0723/FA to allow relocation of footpath and changes to lighting. Currently under
consideration. The Applicant for this application is the school, therefore it does not
need to come to the Planning Committee under the Constitution and will be decided
under delegated powers. Again, this relates to the linear staff parking area within the
school site.

Summary of Representations
4.1

Consultation response from Sport England: No objection.

4.2

Consultation response from Rights of Way Officer: comments will be subject to a verbal
update at the Planning Committee meeting.

4.3

Consultation response from Tree Officer: Verbally advised no objection. Written
comments will be subject to a verbal update at the Planning Committee meeting.

4.4

No third party letters of representation or comments from the Parish Council have
been received at the time of drafting the report. Any that are subsequently received
will be subject to a verbal update at the Planning Committee meeting. The scheme has
been planned in full liaison with the Parish Council.

Page 36

5.0

Policy Considerations and Evaluation
The main issues for consideration are the impact on the Green Belt, the Chilterns AONB, the
views into and out of the adjacent conservation area, the impact on existing playing field
provision and matters of highway safety.




National Planning Policy Framework (NPPF), February 2019.
Core Strategy for Chiltern District - Adopted November 2011:
Chiltern District Local Plan adopted 1 September 1997 (including alterations adopted
29 May 2001), consolidated September 2007 and November 2011.

Green Belt
Core Strategy Policies:
CS1 (The spatial strategy),
CS2 (Amount and distribution of residential development 2006-2026),
CS3 (Amount and distribution of non-residential development 2006-2026)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GB2 (Development in general in the Green Belt)
5.1

The site is located within the open Green Belt. Paragraph 133 of the National Planning
Policy Framework 2019 (hereafter referred to as "the NPPF") states:
The Government attaches great importance to Green Belts. The fundamental aim of
Green Belt policy is to prevent urban sprawl by keeping land permanently open; the
essential characteristics of Green Belts are their openness and their permanence.

5.2

Paragraph 134 of the NPPF continues:
Green Belt serves five purposes:
a) to check the unrestricted sprawl of large built-up areas;
b) to prevent neighbouring towns merging into one another;
c) to assist in safeguarding the countryside from encroachment;
d) to preserve the setting and special character of historic towns; and
e) to assist in urban regeneration, by encouraging the recycling of derelict and
other urban land.

5.3

Paragraph 145 of the NPPF states that "A local planning authority should regard the
construction of new buildings as inappropriate in the Green Belt." Paragraph 146 of
the NPPF states that "Certain other forms of development are also not inappropriate
in the Green Belt provided they preserve its openness and do not conflict with the
purposes of including land within it." It continues by setting out a series of exceptions,
one of which is:
b) engineering operations

5.4

Local Plan Policy GB2 considers "Development In General In The Green Belt" and
states:
Most development in the Green Belt is inappropriate and there is a general
presumption against such development. Development which is not inappropriate is
set out in this Policy. Planning permission will be refused for inappropriate
development in the Green Belt, but may be given for the categories of development
set out in clauses (a) to (f) below.
Clause (f) states:

Page 37

(f) Engineering and other operations and the making of material changes in the use
of land (as distinct from buildings) which maintain openness and do not conflict
with the purposes of including land in the Green Belt.
The policy concludes:
The granting of planning permission is subject to other Policies in this Local plan
being complied with.
5.5

In terms of the Green Belt and the above policy references, the key issue is whether
the proposal preserves or maintains the openness of the area. The hardstanding itself
is at ground level and would have little impact on openness in a spatial sense. There
would be a little more impact in a visual sense, but it is a small area relative to the large
areas of open land on all sides and would be screened by hedging. The reconfigured
row of parking in the adjacent Parish Council car park would be little different to the
previously consented scheme that has recently been implemented. Mindful of the
above, it is considered that the development would preserve and maintain the
openness of the Green Belt and hence would comply with paragraph 146(b) of the
NPPF and Local Plan Policy GB2(f).

Landscape and visual Impact
Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring that development is sustainable)
CS20 (Design and environmental quality)
CS22 (Chilterns Area of Outstanding Beauty)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC1 (Design of development throughout the district)
LSQ1 (Chilterns Area of Outstanding Natural Beauty as defined on the Proposals Map)
5.6

The whole area is within the Chilterns AONB, which is afforded the highest state of
protection in relation to the landscape. That said, the area is characterised by the
recreation ground, play area, tennis courts, skate park, existing car parking areas and
school playing field. It is therefore a landscape with much human influence, and is not
a wholly natural landscape with wider visual impacts. The area of additional
hardstanding is modest in size and tucked into the corner of the playing field, adjacent
to the existing car park areas on two sides. The remainder of the boundary would be
enclosed by hedging. It would form a natural extension of the car park and would not
appear to visually encroach onto the wider AONB landscape. The surfacing materials
can be subject to a condition, to ensure they blend into the landscape as far as possible.
Likewise, with the proposed lighting, although no specific details have been supplied,
this could be subject to a condition to ensure they do not exceed 4 metres in height.
It is noted that the three new lighting columns are a modest height, at 4 metres, which
is the height that a local authority can normally undertake as permitted development.

Historic environment
Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring that development is sustainable)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
LB2 (Protection of setting of Listed Buildings throughout the district)
CA2 (Views Within, out of, or into the Conservation Areas as defined on the Proposals Map)
GC7 (Noise-generating developments throughout the district)

Page 38

5.7

The Great Missenden Conservation Area borders the site to the SW. The character of
this part of the area is defined by the open recreation ground and school playing fields,
with the roofscape and buildings of the medieval village layout forming a backdrop to
the open land, in views to the south and west. These are important views into the
conservation area, but the proposed works would not disrupt these views as they
would largely reconfigure and modestly extend the hardsurfacing that already exists.
There are listed buildings dotted along the High Street, but the proposal is sufficiently
distant from them so as not to harm their setting. Mindful of the above, the proposal
is not considered to harm the views into our out of the conservation area or the setting
of any other heritage assets.

Transport matters and parking
Core Strategy Policies:
CS25 (Dealing with the impact of new development on the transport network)
CS26 (Requirements of new development)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
TR2 (Highway aspects of planning applications throughout the district)
TR3 (Access and road layout throughout the district)
TR11 (Provision of off-street parking for developments throughout the district)
TR15 (Design of parking areas throughout the district)
TR16 (Parking and manoeuvring standards throughout the district)
5.8

The main driver for this application is to pursue improvements to highway safety, with
particular regard to schoolchildren. As discussed above, the application has been
brought about due to the current unsatisfactory provision for coach turning in the
adjacent Parish Council car park, where pupils are currently dropped off and collected
in coaches. Presently, coaches have to drive in forward gear to the drop-off point in
front of the school gates, then reverse back through the car park to turn in reverse
gear, before exiting to the Link Road. This creates a danger to schoolchildren walking
through the car park on their way to and from the school, as coaches have to reverse
in their presence. The proposal would allow coaches to turn and exit without
reversing. This is considered to be a significant improvement in safety terms.

5.9

In terms of the reconfigured layout of the Parish Council car park, as previously
permitted, this contained 20 spaces. The new, currently proposed, layout, contains 23
spaces. It is acknowledged that 5 of these spaces are in a tandem layout, behind other
spaces. Although these particular spaces are not ideal, even if the 5 rearmost spaces
were not extensively used (with users preferring to park in the front spaces to avoid
being boxed in) the number of parking spaces would only be reduced from that
previously permitted by 2 spaces. This is a minimal number and not considered
objectionable, given that the scheme still provides 18 new usable spaces over the
original car park layout. In any event, even if it was considered that the rear of the
tandem spaces would not be used, the highway safety benefits for schoolchildren are
considered to significantly outweigh the loss of 2 usable spaces.

Playing field
Core Strategy Policy:
CS28 (Retaining and improving leisure and recreational facilities)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
R2 (Loss of existing sports facilities)
R10 (Loss of other amenity open space (not open to the general public))

Page 39

5.10 The coach turning circle would be located on a small section of the corner of the school
playing field. Sport England is a statutory consultee for any development on a playing
field. They apply their own list of strict exception criteria to such development. In this
instance, Sport England has raised no objection, stating that the proposed
development only results in a minor encroachment onto the playing field. Having
considered the nature of the playing field and its ability to accommodate a range of
pitches, Sport England state that the development would not reduce the sporting
capability of the site.
Amenity of existing and future residents
Local Plan Saved Policies:
GC3 (Protection of amenities throughout the district)
GC7 (Noise-generating developments throughout the district)
GC8 (Residential and other noise sensitive development in areas of high noise level
throughout the district)
5.11 The coach turning circle would be located away from any residential properties and
would not cause any harm to the amenities of any nearby dwellings. It is also noted
that coaches already use this car park area to drop off pupils, and the new turning circle
would in fact enable the coaches to turn much more safely and quickly. This would be
likely to reduce vehicle movements and associated noise, by eliminating slow reversing
manoeuvres and the inconvenience to other car park users arising from coaches having
to reverse into the section of the car park parallel to the Link Road.
Flooding and drainage
Core Strategy Policy:
CS4 (Ensuring that development is sustainable)
Local Plan Saved Policy:
GC10 (Protection from flooding in the areas as defined on the Proposals Map and throughout
the district)
5.12 The site is located close to the River Misbourne, but is not within Flood Zones 2 or 3,
nor a Critical Drainage Area. It would not therefore have any impact on surface water
or fluvial flooding. Nonetheless, a condition is recommended to ensure that the new
surfacing materials are either permeable, or allow for natural surface water runoff to
drain to a permeable surface within the site. This is to ensure that any surface water
flooding is not exacerbated.
Ecology / Trees
Core Strategy Policies:
CS4 (Ensuring that development is sustainable)
CS24 (Biodiversity)
Local Plan Saved Policies:
NC1 (Safeguarding of nature conservation interests throughout the district)
GC12 (Protection of river character - Rivers Chess & Misbourne)
TW6 (Resistance to loss of woodland throughout the district)
5.13 The only vegetation affected by the proposal is some minor trees and hedging on the
SE boundary of the Parish Council car park. This was not protected, as it lay outside
the conservation area and has already been removed, before the start of the bird
nesting season, to protect wildlife. The applicant proposes to replace this with native

Page 40

hedge planting around the turning circle, which would be of a higher quality than the
scrubby vegetation that has been removed. This can be secured by condition.
5.14 In relation to the River Misbourne, Policy GC12 states that development should not
detrimentally affect the character of the Area’s rivers, river banks or land in the vicinity
of a river. The nearest edge of the turning circle is 50 metres from the line of the River
Misbourne, and as discussed above, the character of this area is as a recreation ground.
Given there is already a car park in the vicinity and coaches already use this area, the
proposal would not impact on the character of the river.
6.0

Weighing and balancing of issues / Overall Assessment
6.1

This section brings together the assessment that has so far been set out in order to
weigh and balance relevant planning considerations in order to reach a conclusion on
the application.

6.2

In determining the planning application, section 38(6) of the Planning and Compulsory
Purchase Act 2004 requires that proposals be determined in accordance with the
development plan unless material considerations indicate otherwise. In addition,
Section 143 of the Localism Act amends Section 70 of the Town and Country Planning
Act relating to the determination of planning applications and states that in dealing
with planning applications, the authority shall have regard to:
a. Provision of the Development Plan insofar as they are material,
b. Any local finance considerations, so far as they are material to the application
(such as CIL if applicable), and,
c. Any other material considerations

7.0

6.3

As set out above, it is considered that the proposed development would accord with
the relevant Development Plan policies.

6.4

Local Planning Authorities, when making decisions of a strategic nature, must have due
regard, through the Equalities Act, to reducing the inequalities which may result from
socio-economic disadvantage. In this instance, it is not considered that this proposal
would disadvantage any sector of society to a harmful extent.

Working with the applicant / agent
7.1

In accordance with paragraph 38 of the NPPF (2019) the Council approach decisiontaking in a positive and creative way taking a proactive approach to development
proposals focused on solutions and working proactively with applicants to secure
sustainable developments.

7.2

The Council works with the applicants/agents in a positive and proactive manner by
offering a pre-application advice service, and as appropriate updating applications /
agents of any issues that may arise in the processing of their application.

7.3

In this instance the application was acceptable as submitted and no further assistance
was required. In addition, the application was considered by the Planning Committee
where the applicant had the opportunity to speak to the Committee and promote the
application.

7.4

The following recommendation is made having regard to the above and also to the
content of the Human Rights Act 1998.

Page 41

8.0

Recommendation: Delegate to the Director of Planning and Environment to approve subject
to conditions and the expiry of the consultation period.
Subject to the following conditions:-

1.

The development to which this permission relates must be begun before the expiration of
three years from the date of this permission.
Reason: To prevent the accumulation of unimplemented planning permissions, to enable the
Local Planning Authority to review the suitability of the development in the light of altered
circumstances and to comply with the provisions of Section 91 (1) of the Town & Country
Planning Act 1990, as amended.

2.

The materials to be used for the surface of the new area of hardstanding shall be permeable,
or shall allow for natural surface water runoff to drain to a permeable surface within the site.
Reason: To maintain the character of the area and to alleviate surface water runoff and
flooding.

3.

The lighting columns shown on the approved drawings shall not exceed 4 metres in height.
Reason: To ensure that any lighting columns are properly controlled, in the interests of the
visual amenity of the area, highway safety and ecology.

4.

A hedge whose species, size and stem spacing shall have been previously agreed in writing
by the Local Planning Authority, shall be planted on the outer edge of the new hardstanding,
as shown on the approved drawings, not later than the first planting season following the
completion of the development hereby permitted. Thereafter the hedge shall be allowed to
mature to a height of at least 2 metres and be maintained thereafter for a period of 5 years
in the following manner. The hedge shall not be removed without the prior consent in
writing of the Local Planning Authority and if at any time the hedge shall die, be uprooted,
injured, wilfully damaged or be removed for any other reason, it shall be replaced with a
hedge of the same species in the next following planting season.
Reason: In order to maintain, as far as possible, the character of the locality.

5.

This permission relates to the details shown on the approved plans as listed below:
List of approved plans:
Received

Plan Reference

23 Feb 2021
23 Feb 2021
23 Feb 2021
2 Mar 2021

HS2-MISC-100-003B Rev. R4
HS2-MISC-100-004 Rev. R0
HS2-MISC-100-015 SITE PLAN Rev. R0
HS2-MISC-100-013 Rev. R1

Page 42

APPENDIX A: Consultation Responses and Representations
Consultation responses:
Sport England:
It is understood that the proposal prejudices the use, or leads to the loss of use, of land being used
as a playing field or has been used as a playing field in the last five years, as defined in The Town
and Country Planning (Development Management Procedure)
(England) Order 2015 (Statutory Instrument 2015 No. 595). The consultation with Sport England is
therefore a statutory requirement.
Sport England has considered the application in light of the National Planning Policy Framework (in
particular Para. 97), and against its own playing fields policy, which states: 'Sport England will
oppose the granting of planning permission for any development which would lead to the loss of,
or would prejudice the use of:




all or any part of a playing field, or
land which has been used as a playing field and remains undeveloped, or
land allocated for use as a playing field,

unless, in the judgement of Sport England, the development as a whole meets with one or more of
five specific exceptions.'
Having reviewed the plans, the proposed development results in a minor encroachment onto the
playing field. However, having considered the nature of the playing field and its ability to
accommodate a range of pitches, it is not considered that the development would reduce the
sporting capability of the site.
Consequently, Sport England are of the view that the proposal broadly meets exception E3 of our
playing fields policy, in that:
'The proposed development affects only land incapable of forming part of a playing pitch and does
not:
 reduce the size of any playing pitch;
 result in the inability to use any playing pitch (including the maintenance of adequate safety
margins and run-off areas);
 reduce the sporting capacity of the playing field to accommodate playing pitches or the
capability to rotate or reposition playing pitches to maintain their quality;
 result in the loss of other sporting provision or ancillary facilities on the site; or
 prejudice the use of any remaining areas of playing field on the site.'
This being the case, Sport England does not wish to raise an objection to this application.

Page 43

APPENDIX B: Site Location Plan

Do not scale – this map is indicative only

Reproduced from the Ordnance Survey map with permission of the Controller of Her Majesty’s Stationary Office © Crown Copyright 2012.
Unauthorised reproduction infringes Crown Copyright and may lead to prosecution or civil proceedings. Buckinghamshire Council, PSMA
Licence Number 100023578

Page 44

